



October 29, 2021

**Child Care Day Camp Manual Transmittal Letter No. 14**

TO: All Child Care Day Camp Manual Holders

FROM: Matt Damschroder, Director

SUBJECT: Child Care Day Camp Rule Amendments

**Background:** All child care day camps are required to register with the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services (ODJFS) on an annual basis. Child care day camps that wish to serve children eligible for publicly funded child care must be inspected and approved by ODJFS and accredited by the American Camp Association (ACA) or similar camp accrediting body approved by ODJFS.

Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) rules 5101:2-18-08, 5101:2-18-10, and 5101:2-18-11 have been amended to ensure that only essential health and safety requirements are mandated and not include requirements that could inhibit small business in Ohio. Rules were revised in compliance with Section 121.95 of the Ohio Revised Code requiring the department to remove at least two regulatory restrictions for each new regulatory restriction added in the rules. Additionally, rules were revised to meet federal requirements, clarify rule requirements, correct typographical errors in paragraph references, remove revision dates from form citations, update references to OCLQS, and provide clarifications for child care day camps.

These rules will be effective on October 29, 2021.

**Amended Rules:**

5101:2-18-08 "Training and professional development requirements for an approved child day camp" has been amended to make the following changes:

- Clarified general language throughout rule
- Added that to meet federal requirements, all child day camp staff members are to be trained in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) appropriate for the age and developmental levels of the children in care
- Added that first aid and CPR trainings are to be completed within the first thirty days of hire
- Removed administrators from first aid, cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), and child abuse recognition and prevention trainings as an administrator is also a child day camp staff member in paragraph (A)(1)

- Clarified that all child day camp staff members, are to be current with either the ODJFS child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention training which is valid for two years or child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention training as described in appendix A to this rule, which is valid for three years
- Clarified that training in child abuse recognition and prevention provided by the ACA can be taken in lieu of the ODJFS training
- Clarified that trainings are to meet the course and trainer requirements in appendix A of this rule
- Clarified that a child day camp staff member who meets the health trainer requirements in appendix A also meets the health training requirements required in this rule
- Added guidance for audiovisual or electronic media trainings
- Added certificates as acceptable documentation to verify health trainings
- Changed "lead counselors" to "child day camp staff members" for consistency
- Replaced "organizations approved by ODJFS or the ACA or similar camp accrediting body approved by ODJFS" with "training organization" to simplify who can issue a training card or certificate

Appendix A has been amended as follows:

- Clarified course content for first aid, CPR, management of communicable disease, and child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention
- Clarified documentation requirements for first aid and CPR to include a certificate from a training organization
- Added a list of topics that first aid courses must include
- Added race, equity, and diversity, including how implicit biases may impact reporting to the list of child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention topics
- Clarified requirements and qualifications for health training approved trainers

5101:2-18-10 "Emergency, disaster and health-related plans for an approved child day camp" has been amended to make the following changes:

- Clarified general language throughout rule
- Added that child day camp staff members and employees receive annual training on the emergency and disaster plan to meet federal requirements
- Added that written documentation of annual training on the emergency and disaster plan is to be kept on-site
- Added that the emergency and disaster plan is to be available to child day camp staff members and employees
- Added a requirement for monthly fire and weather emergency drills to meet federal requirements
- Clarified language regarding serious incidents, including the removal of bump or blow to a child's head in paragraph (B) as this is included in (B)(2)
- Removed the JFS 01156 "Serious Incident Reporting for Child Care" form as incidents are reported in the Ohio Child Licensing and Quality System (OCLQS)
- Added a new paragraph (D) regarding how to recognize, manage, and report communicable disease to meet federal requirements

- Added a requirement that parents must be notified when their child has been exposed to a communicable disease
- Added a requirement that employees and staff members who have a communicable disease must be released
- Removed the requirement for parents to dispose of lancets or needles as other options are acceptable

Appendix A has been added to meet federal requirements as follows:

- A new appendix A lists the requirements to care for sick children

5101:2-18-11 "Administering medication and caring for children with special health needs at an approved child day camp" has been amended to make the following change:

- Added a new paragraph (C) regarding when a child's immunization record is to be on file to meet federal requirements

Appendix A has been added to meet federal requirements as follows:

- A new appendix A lists the diseases for immunizations

#### **Revised Form:**

**JFS 01276 "Health Training Documentation for Child Care"** has been revised to clarify language and improve formatting, require training-exempt individuals to show proof of certification that verifies trainer requirements have been met, clarify documentation of trainer requirements, update contact information fields for the trainer, and to add rule 5101:2-18-08 to the form.

#### **Implementation:**

The most recent version of all ODJFS forms referenced in the child care day camp rules can be accessed through [Forms Central](#). The revised form JFS 01276 is to be utilized beginning on October 29, 2021. Previously dated versions of the JFS 01276 will not be accepted for training completed on or after May 1, 2022.

#### **Questions:**

Please contact the Child Care Policy Helpdesk at [childcarepolicy@jfs.ohio.gov](mailto:childcarepolicy@jfs.ohio.gov) or 1-877-302-2347, option 4, if you have any questions.

5101:2-18-08

**Training and professional development requirements for an approved child day camp.**

(A) What are the health training requirements for an approved child day camp?

(1) All child day camp staff members are to be currently trained in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) appropriate for the age and developmental levels of the children in care.

(a) First aid and CPR trainings are to be completed within the first thirty days of hire.

(b) Until all required individuals are current in the trainings, at a minimum, the child day camp is to have at least one trained child day camp staff member on-site (in each building or on the grounds) during all hours of operation who meets this requirement.

~~(1)(2)~~ An approved child day camp shall have at least one child day camp staff member on-site (in each building or on grounds) ~~who can easily be contacted by any child or staff member~~ during all hours of operation who is currently trained in ~~the following~~ management of communicable disease (more than one person ~~can~~ may be used to meet this requirement):

~~(a) First aid.~~

~~(b) Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) appropriate for school-age children.~~

~~(c) Management of communicable disease.~~

~~(2) Physicians, physician's assistants (PA), registered nurses (RN), advanced practice registered nurses (APRN) and certified nurse practitioners (CNP) employed by the camp are exempt from the first aid, CPR and management of communicable disease training requirement, but may be used to meet the first aid, CPR and management of communicable disease coverage requirement.~~

~~(3) Each administrator and~~ All child care day camp staff member members are to be currently trained in child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention shall complete the Ohio department of job and family services (ODJFS) one-hour child abuse overview, which is valid two years. The child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention training overview shall be completed within thirty days of hire.

(a) If the child day camp provides training in child abuse and neglect recognition and prevention and meets the American camp association

(ACA) requirements, it can be taken in place of the Ohio department of job and family (ODJFS) training.

(b) Until all required individuals are current in this training, at a minimum, the child day camp is to have at least one trained child day camp staff member on-site (in each building or on the grounds) during all hours of operation who meets this requirement.

(4) Trainings are to meet course and trainer requirements in appendix A to this rule.

(5) If a child day camp staff member meets the trainer requirements in appendix A to this rule for a health training, that person is considered to meet the health training requirement for that health training pursuant to paragraphs (A)(1) and (A)(2) of this rule.

(6) Audiovisual or electronic media training are not to be used to meet the CPR training requirement pursuant to paragraph (A)(1) of this rule unless there is also an in-person training component.

(B) What are the ongoing professional development training requirements for the administrator and ~~lead counselors~~ child day camp staff members ?

Complete a minimum of five clock hours of professional development training each fiscal year in any of the categories approved by the ~~American camp association (ACA)~~ ACA or similar camp accrediting body approved by ODJFS. The fiscal year is defined as July first through June thirtieth.

(C) What verification is needed on file at the approved child day camp to document the completed training?

(1) The health trainings shall be documented by one of the following:

(a) Verification from the Ohio professional registry (OPR).

(b) Training cards or certificates issued by ~~organizations approved by ODJFS or the ACA or similar camp accrediting body approved by ODJFS for first aid, CPR or prevention, recognition and management of communicable disease~~ the training organization.

(c) The JFS 01276 "Health Training Documentation for Child Care" (~~rev. 12/2016~~).

(2) The on-going professional development shall be documented by one of the following:

- (a) Verification from OPR.
  - (b) Transcript of completion of college courses from an accredited university, college or technical college.
    - (i) One quarter credit hour equals ten clock hours of training.
    - (ii) One semester credit hour equals fifteen clock hours of training.
  - (c) Certificates indicating continuing education units (CEU). One CEU equals ten clock hours of training.
  - (d) Certificates issued by ACA or a similar camp accrediting body approved by ODJFS.
  - (e) The JFS 01307 "Professional Development Documentation for Child Care" (~~rev. 12/2016~~).
  - (f) Certificates issued by Ohio child welfare training centers.
- (3) An approved child day camp administrator or owner shall, within five business days, provide current staff with copies of their training documentation upon request or upon separation from employment for any records not verified in the OPR.

Effective: 10/29/2021

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 4/16/2023

CERTIFIED ELECTRONICALLY

---

Certification

10/05/2021

---

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03  
Statutory Authority: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Rule Amplifies: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Prior Effective Dates: 04/16/2018

## Health Training Courses

### Course Content for First Aid

1. May include cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training
2. Is valid for the number of years indicated on the JFS 01276 "Health Training Documentation for Child Care", card or certificate provided by the training organization
3. Covers the following topics:
  - Abrasions, lacerations and bleeding, including nosebleed
  - Burns
  - Fainting
  - Poisoning, including swallowed, skin or eye contact, and inhaled
  - Puncture wounds, including splinters
  - Injuries, including insect, animal, and human bites
  - Poison control
  - Shock
  - Seizure care
  - Musculoskeletal injury (such as sprains, fractures)
  - Dental and mouth injuries/trauma
  - Head injuries, including shaken baby syndrome/abusive head trauma
  - Allergic reactions
  - Asthmatic reactions
  - Eye injuries
  - Loss of consciousness
  - Electric shock
  - Drowning
  - Heat-related injuries, including heat exhaustion/heat stroke
  - Cold related injuries, including frostbite
  - Moving and positioning injured/ill persons
  - Illness-related emergencies (such as stiff neck, inexplicable confusion, sudden onset of blood-red or purple rash, severe pain, temperature and looking/acting severely ill)
  - Standard Precautions

### Course Content for CPR

1. Follows a curriculum that is appropriate for the age and developmental levels of the children in care
2. Is valid for the number of years as indicated on the JFS 01276 "Health Training Documentation for Child Care", card or certificate provided by the training organization

### Course Content for Management of Communicable Disease

1. Follows the curriculum prescribed by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services (ODJFS)



2. Is valid for three years

Course Content for Child Abuse and Neglect Recognition and Prevention

1. The Ohio department of job and family services child abuse and neglect training which is valid for two years, OR
2. Course created that covers the following topics which is valid for three years:
  - Ohio law and rules pertaining to child abuse and neglect, including definitions, reporting and confidentiality requirements and the requirement to report suspected abuse or neglect by child day camp staff members if observed or suspected
  - Physical and behavioral indicators of child abuse and neglect
  - Details on reporting, including penalty, immunity and how and to whom to report
  - Race, equity, and diversity including how implicit biases may impact reporting
  - The investigatory role of the children's protective services agency
  - The sharing of information and the role of law enforcement, licensing and the courts in reports of child abuse and neglect
  - Helping families who have occurrences of abuse or neglect
  - Prevention of child abuse and neglect in the child day camp, including: staff supervision and training, policies and procedures and appropriate discipline

## **Health Training Approved Trainers**

### First Aid Trainers

1. Currently certified first aid trainer
2. Licensed physician, physician's assistant (PA), advanced practice registered nurse (APRN), certified nurse practitioner (CNP), or registered nurse (RN)
3. Emergency medical services instructor
4. Licensed athletic trainer

### CPR Trainers

1. Currently certified CPR instructor
2. Emergency medical services instructor

### Management of Communicable Disease Trainers

1. Licensed physician, PA, APRN, CNP, or RN
2. Emergency medical services instructor
3. Current trainer employed by local health department

### Child Abuse and Neglect Recognition and Prevention Trainers

1. Authorized trainer for a public children services agency (PCSA)
2. Person with at least an associate's degree in social work, child development or related field from accredited college and two years of experience professionally assessing child abuse and neglect for a PCSA or an agency contracted by a PCSA or providing counseling to abused children or training others in child abuse prevention or the combination of experience and training
3. Licensed physician, PA, APRN, CNP, or RN with two years of experience professionally assessing child abuse and neglect or providing counseling to abused children or training others in child abuse prevention or the combination of experience and training

5101:2-18-10      **Emergency, disaster and health-related plans for an approved child day camp.**

- (A) What are the general emergency, ~~and~~ disaster and health plan requirements for an approved child day camp?

The approved child day camp shall develop a written emergency and disaster plan and train child day camp staff members and employees on each plan annually make it available to all child day camp staff members and employees. Written documentation of this training is to be kept on-site.

- (1) The plan ~~shall~~ is to include procedures that will be used to prepare for and respond to the following types of emergency or disaster situations:

- (a) Weather emergencies and natural disasters which include severe thunderstorms, tornadoes, flash flooding or earthquakes.
- (b) Emergency outdoor or indoor lockdown or evacuation due to threats of violence which includes active shooter, bioterrorism or terrorism.
- (c) Emergency or disaster evacuations due to hazardous materials and spills, gas leaks or bomb threats.
- (d) Outbreaks, epidemics or other infectious disease emergencies.
- (e) Loss of power, water or heat.
- (f) Other threatening situations that may pose a health or safety hazard to the children at the day camp.
- (g) Conduct monthly fire and weather emergency drills.

- (2) The emergency and disaster plan ~~shall~~ are to include details for:

- (a) Shelter in place or evacuation, how the approved child day camp will care for and account for the children until they can be reunited with the parent.
- (b) Assisting children with special needs and/or health conditions.
- (c) Reunification with parents.
  - (i) Emergency contact information for the parents and the approved child day camp.

- (ii) Procedures for notifying and communicating with parents regarding the location of the children if evacuated.
- (iii) Procedures for communicating with parents during loss of communication, including loss of phone service or internet availability.
- (d) The location of supplies and procedures for gathering necessary supplies for children if required to shelter in place.
- (e) What to do if a disaster occurs during the transport of children or when on a field trip or routine trip.
- (f) Making the plan available to all child day camp staff members and employees.
- ~~(f)~~(g) Training of staff or reassignment of staff duties as appropriate.
- ~~(g)~~(h) Updating the plan on a yearly basis.
- ~~(h)~~(i) Contact with local emergency management officials.

(B) What is a serious incident?

- (1) Death of a child at the approved child day camp.
- ~~(2) A child receives a bump or blow to the head that requires first aid or medical attention.~~
- ~~(3)~~(2) An incident, injury or illness ~~which that~~ requires ~~a child to be removed by the parent or emergency services from the day camp for professional medical consultation or treatment, professional consultation for a child or transportation for emergency treatment.~~
- ~~(a) If a child is transported for emergency treatment the child's health and medical records required by rule 5101:2-18-11 of the Administrative Code shall accompany the child.~~
- ~~(b) The child day camp administrator or child day camp staff member shall stay with the child until the parent assumes responsibility for the child's care.~~
- ~~(4)~~(3) An unusual or unexpected incident which jeopardizes the safety of a child, child day camp staff member, or employee of an approved child day camp.

(C) What does the approved child day camp do if there is a serious incident?

The approved day camp ~~shall~~ is to:

- (1) Log in to Ohio child licensing and quality system (OCLQS) at <https://oclqs.force.com> by the next business day to report the incident as described in paragraph (B) of this rule, ~~and complete the JFS 01156 "Serious Incident Reporting for Child Care" (rev. 10/2017).~~ This notification does not replace reporting to the public children services agency (PCSA) if there are any concerns of child abuse and/or neglect as required by rule 5101:2-18-09 of the Administrative Code.
- (2) Notify in writing the parents of the child(ren) involved in the serious incident. A copy of the completed serious incident report in OCLQS~~JFS 01156~~ may be given to the parent or the person picking up the child to meet this notification requirement.
- (3) If a child is transported by anyone other than a parent for emergency treatment the child's health and medical records required by rule 5101:2-18-11 of the Administrative Code are to accompany the child. The child day camp administrator or a child day camp staff member is to stay with the child until the parent assumes responsibility for the child's care.

(D) What are the communicable disease requirements for an approved child day camp?

- (1) Any child enrolled and attending the child day camp with signs or symptoms of illness listed in appendix A to this rule is to be immediately isolated and discharged to their parent or guardian or person designated by the parent or guardian.
- (2) The JFS 08087 "Communicable Disease Chart" is to be displayed in the size available in the Ohio department of job and family services (ODJFS) forms central in order for individuals to easily read, identify and respond to communicable diseases.

Child day camp staff members and employees are to:

- (a) Follow the requirements listed on the JFS 08087.
- (b) If the communicable disease is required to be reported to the local health department, the child day camp is to report the communicable disease to ODJFS in accordance with paragraph (B) to this rule by the end of the next business day.

(3) No later than the end of the next business day, the child day camp is to notify parents when their child has been exposed to a communicable disease listed on the JFS 08087.

(4) The child day camp is to release employees and staff members who have a communicable disease or who are unable to perform their duties due to illness.

~~(D)~~(E) What are the specific procedures the approved day camp needs to follow for standard precautions?

- (1) Blood spills shall be treated cautiously and decontaminated promptly. Disposable vinyl gloves shall be worn during contact with blood or bodily fluids which contain blood, such as vomit or feces in which blood can be seen.
- (2) Surfaces contaminated with blood or bodily fluids containing blood shall first be cleaned with hot, soapy water and then sanitized with an appropriate bleach solution which is prepared on a daily basis according to product guidelines, or other acceptable disinfectant solution which is environmental protection agency (EPA) rated as hospital disinfectant with a label claim for mycobactericidal activity.
- (3) Disposal of materials that contain blood requires a sealable, leakproof plastic bag or double bagging in plastic bags that are securely tied.
- (4) Non-disposable items, such as clothing that contains blood, shall be placed in a sealable, leakproof plastic bag or double bagged in plastic bags that are securely tied and sent home with the child.
- (5) Sharp items used for procedures on children with special care needs, such as lancets for finger sticks or syringes, require a disposable container called a "sharps container." This is a container made out of durable, rigid material which safely stores the lancets or needles until they are disposed of properly ~~the parent can take them home for disposal~~. Sharps containers ~~must~~ are to be stored out of the reach of children.

Effective: 10/29/2021

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 4/16/2023

CERTIFIED ELECTRONICALLY

---

Certification

10/05/2021

---

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03  
Statutory Authority: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Rule Amplifies: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Prior Effective Dates: 04/16/2018

## Appendix A to Rule 5101:2-18-10

**Caring for Sick Children**

A child is considered to be sick when demonstrating any of the following symptoms:

- Temperature of at least one hundred and one degrees Fahrenheit (one hundred degrees Fahrenheit if taken axillary) when in combination with any other sign or symptom of illness.
- Diarrhea (three or more abnormally, unexpectedly or unexplained loose stools within a twenty-four hour period).
- Severe coughing, causing the child to become red or blue in the face or to make a whooping sound.
- Difficult or rapid breathing.
- Yellowish skin or eyes.
- Redness of the eye or eyelid, thick and purulent (pus) eye discharge, matted eyelashes, burning, itching or eye pain.
- Untreated infected skin patches, unusual spots or rashes.
- Unusually dark urine and /or gray or white stool.
- Stiff neck with elevated temperature.
- Evidence of untreated lice, scabies, or other parasitic infestations.
- Sore throat or difficulty in swallowing.
- Vomiting more than one time or when accompanied by any other sign or symptom of illness.

When caring for sick children, the approved child day camp shall.

- Isolate the sick child away from other children, in another room or portion of a room, but within sight and hearing at all times.
- Provide the sick child with a cot or mat and make comfortable.
- Notify the child's parent(s) immediately to arrange discharge and if the child's condition worsens during isolation.
- Sanitize the thermometer after each use.



5101:2-18-11

**Administering medication and caring for children with special health needs at an approved child day camp.**

- (A) What are the requirements for administration of prescription medications and non-prescription medications by an approved child day camp?
- (1) The approved child day camp shall ensure that prescription medication is stored in the original container with the prescription label that includes the child's full name, a current dispensing date within the previous twelve months, and exact dosage and directions for use.
  - (2) The approved child day camp shall not administer any medication or topical product for any period of time beyond the date indicated by the physician, physician's assistant, advanced practice nurse certified to prescribe medication, or licensed dentist, on the prescription label, for twelve months from the date on the form, or after the expiration date on the medication, whichever comes first.
  - (3) The approved day camp shall ensure that non-prescription medications are stored in the original container with a manufacturer's label containing directions based on the age and/or weight of the child.
  - (4) Nonprescription medication dosages administered shall not exceed prescribed dosages or the manufacturer's recommended dosages.
  - (5) Prior to administering any non-prescription or prescription medication, the approved child day camp shall have written permission from the parent for each medication to be administered.
  - (6) The approved child day camp shall document each administration of medication or application of topical product on a form that includes:
    - (a) The child's name.
    - (b) The child's date of birth.
    - (c) The medication name.
    - (d) The medication dosage.
    - (e) The date the medication was administered.
    - (f) The time the medication was administered.
    - (g) The signature of the person administering the medication.

- (7) Non-prescription topical products, including bug sprays, sunscreens, hand sanitizer and lip balm, are exempt from the requirement in paragraphs (A)(3) and (A)(4) of this rule.
- (8) School-age children are permitted to carry their own emergency medication as long as written permission from the parent is completed and on file at the approved day camp.
- (9) School-age children are permitted to carry and use their own topical products including bug sprays, lip balm and sunscreen.

(B) What are the requirements for storing medication at an approved child day camp?

The approved child day camp shall:

- (1) Safely store all medication upon arrival at the approved child day camp. Ensure the medication is in the original container with the child's name affixed.
- (2) Keep medication out of reach of children, unless a school-age child is permitted to carry their own emergency medication and written permission from the parent is on file at the approved child day camp.
- (3) Refrigerate, in a separate container, medications or products immediately upon arrival at the approved child day camp, if needed.
- (4) Ensure that medications are accessible to employees at all times, including on field trips and when children are off-site.
- (5) Ensure that medications and products are removed from the approved child day camp when no longer needed or expired.

(C) What are the requirements for immunization records at an approved child day camp?

- (1) A child who is not enrolled in a public or nonpublic school is to have a record of immunizations on file within thirty days of the child's first day of attendance.
- (2) The immunization record is to contain the following information:
  - (a) The child's name and birth date.
  - (b) Each immunization the child has had, specifying the month, day and year for the prevention of the diseases listed on appendix A to this rule.
- (3) If a child has not received an immunization(s) to prevent a disease on the appendix of this rule, then one or both of the following is to be on file:

- (a) A statement from the physician, as defined in Chapter 4731, of the Revised Code, physician's assistant (PA), advanced practice registered nurse (APRN), or certified nurse practitioner (CNP) that an immunization against the disease is medically contraindicated for the child or is not medically appropriate for the child's age.
- (b) A statement from the child's parent that they have declined to have the child immunized against the disease for reasons of conscience, including religious convictions.

~~(C)~~(D) What if a child has a special need or health condition?

- (1) A written medical care plan shall be used for children with a condition or diagnosis that requires specific care and/or intervention by child day camp staff. The written plan shall include the following:
  - (a) The symptoms the staff should monitor which may require staff to take action.
  - (b) Administering procedures which require staff to be trained on those procedures.
  - (c) Avoiding specific food(s), environmental conditions or activities.
  - (d) Permission for the child to carry and administer their own emergency medication, if applicable.
- (2) The approved child day camp shall:
  - (a) Ensure the parent completes and signs a written medical care plan for each condition per child.
  - (b) Review the written medical care plan for completeness and ensure the medical care plan is signed by an administrator or designee.
  - (c) Implement and follow all requirements of each child's medical care plan.
  - (d) Ensure the medical care plan is signed by any trained child day camp staff member who is providing care to the child.
  - (e) Maintain a current medical care plan for any child who requires one, in a location that can be easily and quickly accessed at all times, including on field trips and when the child is off-site.

- (3) The written medical care plan shall be on file with the approved child day camp by the first day of attendance or upon confirmation of a health condition.
- (4) If the approved child day camp suspects that a child has a health condition, the camp may require a physician's statement within a designated timeframe.
- (5) Only staff members trained by the parent or a certified professional shall be permitted to perform medical procedures.
- (6) There shall be a trained staff member on-site at all times whenever a child who has a health condition is present.

~~(D)~~(E) What information regarding children's medical records can be shared?

Children's medical records shall be kept confidential, but shall be available to the Ohio department of job and family services for the purpose of administering Chapter 5104. of the Revised Code and Chapter 5101:2-18 of the Administrative Code.

Effective: 10/29/2021

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 4/16/2023

CERTIFIED ELECTRONICALLY

---

Certification

10/05/2021

---

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03  
Statutory Authority: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Rule Amplifies: 5104.21, 5104.22  
Prior Effective Dates: 04/16/2018

### Diseases for Immunizations

1. Chicken pox.
2. Diphtheria.
3. Haemophilus influenzae type b.
4. Hepatitis A.
5. Hepatitis B.
6. Influenza (if seasonal vaccine is available).
7. Measles.
8. Mumps.
9. Pertussis.
10. Pneumococcal disease.
11. Poliomyelitis.
12. Rotavirus.
13. Rubella.
14. Tetanus.